
1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ADVANCED PUBLICATION OF 
REPORTS 

 
 
 
 

This publication gives five clear working days’ notice of the decisions listed below. 
 

These decisions are due to be signed by individual Cabinet Members 
and operational key decision makers. 

 
Once signed all decisions will be published on the Council’s 

Publication of Decisions List. 
 
 
 
 

1. ARG AND WBF  (Pages 1 - 28) 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



PL 21/038 P 
 

London Borough of Enfield 
 
[Portfolio Decision] 
 

 
Subject:  ARG and WBF 
Cabinet Member:  Cllr Mary Maguire, Cabinet Member for Finance and 

Procurement 
Executive Director: Sarah Cary           
Key Decision: KD    - 5382      
 

 
 
Purpose of Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to agree Enfield Council’s scheme for 
implementing the next phase of the Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG) 
and Welcome Back Funding (WBF) grant. 
 

2. These two grants are part of a range of grant support packages provided 
to local government to support post Covid Activity and support business 
and the local economy. 
 

3. Local Authorities received ARG funding to support business and provide 
business support activities when national or local Covid restrictions had 
been imposed. An initial allocation of 9.3 million pounds was granted to 
Enfield to support businesses. This was successfully delivered and Enfield 
has qualified for a further 2.3 million pounds of funding. Local authorities 
are responsible for delivering grants to businesses and have discretion 
over the design and implementation of their local scheme. This report 
outlines the activities and schemes to spend this by March 2022 which is 
the deadline for all spend. 
 

4. Through the Reopening High Streets Fund now known as the Welcome 
Back Fund (WBF) Enfield Council was awarded an additional £262,673 to 
support the return to high streets safely. This was part of the £56m of 
European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) that Councils across 
England shared to support the return to high streets safely. This grant 
funding must be spent by March 2022. 
 

Proposal(s) 
 

5. To approve the delivery of the ARG schemes and WBF scheme outlined 
within this report. 
 

6. For ARG, the funds are to be distributed through a mixture of direct grants 
to businesses, business support schemes and town centre development 
and regeneration programmes in line with the aims and vision of the 
Economic Development Strategy and Council Plan and is in line with the 
associated guidelines and criteria.  
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 1



PL 21/038 P 
 

7. This links to a previous KD 5278 which saw a similar proposal agreed until 
government guidelines and policy changed switching the focus to direct 
grants in place of business support activity 
 

8. For WBF, that the activity and spend focuses on major events and 
festivals building on the success of the recent Month of Sundays activity 
which saw 47,100 visitors attending our town centres and 150K invested 
in Enfield’s Creative sector. This would see a lights festival held in the 
borough and a further series of Christmas festivals in our town centres to 
support the local economy, encourage footfall and support the Town 
Centre Action Plans. Communication Activity to support these ideas would 
be funded as permitted under the scheme.  
 

9. To delegate authority to the Executive Director of Place in consultation 
with the Cabinet member for Finance and Procurement to amend as 
appropriate the criteria and delivery of the ARG scheme and WBF scheme 
in response to any changes in government guidance and to approve the 
Council entering into the relevant contract documentation necessary to 
implement the proposals within this Report. 
 

Reason for Proposal(s) 
 

10. These grants are mutually supportive of each other in that they share the 
same aims in supporting local businesses and the local economy in post 
pandemic recovery, and so are being considered and developed 
alongside each other although both have their own specific guidelines, 
framework and rules on what the monies can be used for.  

 
11. This activity will contribute to securing the economic success of Enfield 

and providing a boost to the local economy and support and enhance the 
existing offer. 

  
12. These activities have been designed through careful examination of the 

government guidance looking at what is permitted under the guidance 
 

13. We have undertaken thorough engagement with council departments and 
teams through brainstorming sessions to ensure these ideas are evidence 
led.  We have explored and researched best practice with other local 
authorities. The approach has also been informed by consultation with 
local businesses through surveys and focus group. A robust methodology 
was then applied to all the ideas to score their suitability against a range of 
criteria. This criterion looked at the tangibility of the scheme, the outcomes 
and outputs, how it fits with the ARG and WBF guidance and how the 
ideas support the aims of the Council Plan and Economic Development 
Strategy. 
 

14. By utilising the additional ARG funding for wider business support 
schemes alongside smaller direct grants we will establish a legacy for the 
borough to encourage entrepreneurship and growth. We wish to create a 
framework of support to establish new thriving businesses across a range 
of sectors and encourage, creative and innovative businesses and start-
ups. This will also enable us to develop our economy and businesses in 

Page 2



PL 21/038 P 
 

line with key strategies such as Cultural Strategy and Climate Change 
Agenda. 
 

15. We recognise the need to spend the allocated money in a robust yet 
timely manner as all funding needs to be spent by March 2022.  
 

16. Government guidance on these grants is regularly updated and flexibility 
is needed to respond to this quickly for the benefit of the economy and 
local businesses. 
 

Relevance to the Council Plan 
 

17. The activity is linked to the strategic deliverables as outlined in  
the Enfield Council Plan 2020-2022. This centres around creating an  
economy that works for everyone through aiding job retention and  
business viability and ensuring key deliverables such as 

 creating more high-quality employment 
 enhance skills and connect local people to job opportunities 
 develop town centre’s that are vibrant, safe and inclusive 
 craft a cultural offer for Enfield to support London’s status as a world 

class city 

18. This is underpinned by the need to foster growth and development in 
Enfield and the Wider London area. 

 
Background 

 
19. As part of its response to the disruption caused by COVID-19, Central 

Government has announced various funding streams to support 
businesses.  
 

20. Councils across England shared £56m of European Regional 
Development Fund (ERDF) funding to support the return to high streets 
safely. This funding is known as the “Welcome Back Fund” (WBF) and it 
builds on the £50m Reopening High Street Safely Fund (RHSSF) 
allocated to councils in May 2020. It forms part of wider support 
government is providing to communities and businesses, to protect jobs, 
support the most vulnerable and ensure no one is left behind as we 
continue to tackle the Covid-19 pandemic and begin to build back better. 
Under the WBF, Enfield was awarded an additional £295,948. Unused 
RHSSF funding allocation was rolled over into the WBF allocation and can 
be spent across all six strands depending on local needs. In total, Enfield 
Council has been awarded £591,896 to support the return to high streets.  
 

21. The Government recognises that economic need will vary across the 
country, and so the precise design of the WBF fund will be up to each 
local authority but funding can only be used against the following activities 
 

a. Support to develop an action plan for how the local authority may 
begin to safely reopen their local economies 

Page 3



PL 21/038 P 
 

b. Communications and public information activity to ensure that 
reopening of local economies can be managed successfully and 
safely 

c. Business-facing awareness raising activities to ensure that 
reopening of local economies can be managed successfully and 
safely 

d. Temporary public realm changes to ensure that reopening of 
local economies can be managed successfully and safely 

e. Support to promote a safe public environment for a local area’s 
visitor economy 

f. Support local authorities to develop plans for responding to the 
medium-term impact of Covid-19 including trialling new ideas 
particularly where these relate to the High Street 

 
22. The WBF cannot be used for activities that support existing activity for 

capital expenditure on capital works or through direct grants to 
businesses.  
 

23. The ARG grant scheme follows on from the Government-funded Small 
Business Grant Fund (SBGF) Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant Fund, 
(RHLGF) and Local Authority Discretionary Grant Fund (LADGF) that 
were administered by local authorities following the first national lockdown 
in March 2020. Government subsequently announced on the 22 March 
2021 that a subsequent round of funding would be made available to local 
authorities that have spent their allotted amount by the end of June 2021. 
The value of this additional funding for Enfield is £2.3M. 
 

24. The Government recognises that economic need will vary across the 
country, and so the precise design of the discretionary fund will be up to 
each local authority.  They have however outlined guidance for the 
distribution of the ARG and this can be used for 
 

a. Providing direct grant support to businesses severely impacted by 
restrictions. This may include businesses that have already been in 
receipt of Restart grants.  

b. Supporting businesses that have been unable to access other 
business support grant schemes 

c. Supporting home businesses and sole traders (without using ARG 
as a wage support mechanism for employees or owners of a 
business 

d. Other business support measures that allow businesses to be the 
direct recipients of ARG funding 

e. Distributing funding to a LEP or Growth Hub for the provision of 
wider business support 

 

25. ARG cannot be used for infrastructure projects, funding whereby the local 
authority is the direct recipient, wage support (unless for direct business 
support) or diverting funds from businesses to meet other costs. 

 
 

 

Page 4



PL 21/038 P 
 

Main Considerations for the Council 
 

26. It is for each council to determine how to distribute both the ARG and 
WBFs. The proposed activity has been developed following research, 
liaison and understanding best practice with other local authorities and 
dialogue with internal and external stakeholders  
 

27.  For ARG we would utilise the funding across a variety of schemes 
 

28. Direct Grants: Over £8 million was distributed to Local businesses 
through direct grants through the initial ARG Scheme. This focussed on all 
sectors that had suffered through the pandemic and we had an application 
window open to all businesses that had not received any government 
support. We would use a proportion of this funding, 20% to build on this 
activity and to further support sectors that have continued to suffer. 
Intelligence from the Business Rates Team, the previous phase and 
research that has been undertaken has identified that business sectors 
including Garages, Coach and Travel companies, Warehouses and 
independent Nurseries require further support. There are also some 
businesses that made late applications for the first scheme that we would 
like to consider and support. 
 

29. There will be associated Staffing Costs associated with the direct grants 
work and wider Business Support work that would constitute 6% of the 
grant and be covered by the ARG scheme. 
 

30. Delivery infrastructure Online platform:  A small amount would be used 
to help develop ShopAppy by providing funding for a delivery 
infrastructure that would enable items that are purchased through the 
Shop Appy application to be delivered to people’s homes. This would 
support local businesses and town centres 

 
31. Business Support Schemes. Businesses and organisations who have 

been impacted by COVID-19 will be supported by a new suite of business 
support schemes. By utilising 16% of the funding for wider business 
support, we will establish a legacy for the borough to encourage 
entrepreneurship and growth. This is one of the fundamental aims of the 
Economic Development Strategy. Under the first phase of ARG a 
partnership was established between Enfield Council and Federation of 
Small Businesses (FSB) establishing a unique 1000 business membership 
club to support the local business community where Businesses can have 
access to workshops, seminars, roundtables, and forums, advice and 
support. We wish to build on this through development of the following 
 

a. Business start-up project to provide dedicated training, mentoring, 
and advice for new entrepreneurs across the Borough. The 
programme will involve a mentoring element, upskilling residents to 
develop their new business in Enfield. The aim of this project is to 
help residents that have started their own business but have found 
barriers into making the next step such as market knowledge or 
confidence. The scheme will focus on growth areas such as Green 
Economy, Tech and the Creative industries. 

Page 5



PL 21/038 P 
 

 
b. A Business Support Scale-up programme. The aim of the project 

will be to support businesses to identify and exploit opportunities to 
grow, to ensure they are up to date with the latest leadership and 
management thinking, to help to find new markets and to learn how 
to utilize the mediums and identify and access growth finance. 
Project will target companies which are in high-growth areas and 
lead them to continue growing, innovating and staying ahead of the 
competition. The scale-up programme is designed to provide 
support through research and development, innovation and the 
access to new talent  

 
c. A Creative entrepreneurship schemes. This will be vital as part of 

the new economic landscape in Enfield. This is designed to 

complement the new merging creative sector in Enfield. This is a 

bespoke support for young people aged 18 plus looking to enter the 

creative sector. Programme delivery will be split into 3 sections 

which include starting a business, developing a businesses and 

employment opportunities.  

 
d. To support and facilitate an E-Business Support project run by 

Enfield Enterprise This will have tangible outcomes in helping 

businesses adapt and grow. This will allow companies to link their 

internal and external processes more efficiently and effectively to 

grow and safeguard jobs. 

 
32. Town Centre Business Support: we would use a proportion of the total 

ARG, 30% for wider business development. The justification for this is a 
wish to create a legacy for this funding, to underpin and support 
businesses now and in the future, foster growth and encourage 
entrepreneurship. A set of mission principles that have been designed that 
have been used to evaluate potential ideas and schemes. These include 
maximising local economic benefit, revitalising town centres, supporting 
local jobs and encourage entrepreneurship, supporting Cultural initiatives, 
brining Social value and supporting young people. These are themes that 
are integral and underpin the Economic Development Strategy and The 
Council Plan. Detailed ideas have been formed around schemes that this 
funding may facilitate. These include 3 key schemes 
 

a) Support for African Businesses through the development of 123 
Fore Street where 1,600 square feet of empty retail space re-
purposed on high street.  Businesses provided with space and liked 
to the above business support to support businesses to develop 
and encourage community cohesion 
 

b) Outdoor Trading Support: Facilitating outdoor trading opportunities 
for businesses in town centres. Encouraging café culture and 
events as well as more pragmatic trading approaches in key areas 
including Devonshire Road in Palmers Green and Ashfield Parade 
in Southgate 

 

Page 6



PL 21/038 P 
 

c) Town Centre Pop up; procurement of pop-up shop operator to run a 
rotation of businesses through empty shop with programme of town 
centre activity and business support  

 
33.  Shared Workspace/Community Hub. We would be allocating 20% of 

the ARG allocation to look at delivering a shared workspace location for 
local businesses to use in Enfield. We would look to work with a delivery 
partner to enable this. This would be an area where businesses could rent 
a private office space, co-working desks, meeting rooms and conference 
facilities supplemented with printing and machinery to use as a space to 
grow their business. This could have a film/music or tech focus having 
dedicated studios for business to use. This workspace or hub would be 
and inclusive environment that would help facilitate knowledge exchange, 
nurture a place-based network of makers, encourage collaboration and 
provide businesses with a space to discuss collective problems and 
opportunities. There would be maker spaces and an environment where 
businesses alongside others could use and grow. We would link this to our 
business support schemes and explore running these from such venues to 
offer encompassing support offer for our Businesses and build on the work 
that Building Bloqs have done.  

 
34. Communications Programme. We would allocate 6% of the funding to 

support communications campaigns across the work of the Economic 
Development team. This will enable the successful delivery of the ARG 
and WBF schemes. This would support campaigns directly related to 
business support and the local economy. This includes 

 
a) A Campaign to help those that lost their job during pandemic to 

get back into employment including helping the young people/ 
long term employed get jobs/skills; to help upskill the Enfield 
workforce to meet the needs of future growth sectors. This is 
consisting of Digital advertising, content production, press 
advertising, outdoor advertising 

b) New campaign to promote opportunities for businesses already 
in borough to develop and expand.  This will Support the 
campaigns for the individual support projects which are being 
led by providers and promote of ED strategy.  This would run 
until March 2022.  

c) Ongoing campaign to promote Enfield as an inward investment 
destination. 

d) An Industrial comms campaign providing the industrial 
businesses with more exposure and celebrating their 
achievements 

e) Promoting localised supply chains for industrial businesses.  
 

35.  Creative Arts Training. We would facilitate training opportunity, procuring 
a supplier to provide skills and opportunities for young people and existing 
businesses through a Training scheme offer a series of workshops and 
lessons to support the next generation of performers and creative arts 
businesses 
 

Page 7



PL 21/038 P 
 

36. For the Welcome Back Funding the full allocation of £262,673 would be 
allocated to major events and festivals building on the success of the 
recent Month of Sundays activity and accompanying Communications 
campaigns. 
 

37. The festival activity fits under the Support to promote a safe public 
environment for a local area’s visitor economy criteria within the 
WBF guidelines.: As part of the Council’s package of measures to 
support the borough recover from the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, 
we will welcome the community back to their high streets this Christmas 
with scheduled and unscheduled creative and cultural activity and would 
procure a delivery partner to work with the council to achieve this. A winter 
lights festival in early 2022 would follow on from this with the same 
outcomes that Enfield’s town centres benefit from increased visitors, 
residents enjoy amazing experiences and the borough continues to grow 
and develop its cultural programme. 

 
38.  Communications Activity to support the Welcome Back Fund activity 

would also be funded as per paragraph 33.  
 

Administration, Assessment and Payment of Grants 
 

39. The following procedures will apply to the ARG. where direct grants are 
issued there will be an application process and a comprehensive set of 
criteria published so businesses will be clear on the criteria used and the 
evidence that is needed to make a successful claim. There will be an 
applications window with a fixed closing date and applications will be 
reviewed for eligibility throughout the process. This will ensure we adhere 
to government guidance and can fulfil any audit and assurance processes 
 

40. For the Welcome Back Fund, ERDF procurement rules will be followed. All 
Activity needs to be agreed and signed off by MHCLG to ensure that the 
activity is permitted under the WBF guidance.  

 
41. We have established a ARG and WBF governance board and associated 

action groups to oversee the work, ensure successful delivery of these 
schemes and to ensure that all procedures and government guidance is 
followed.  

 
Safeguarding Implications 
 

42. There are no Safeguarding implications for this report 
 
Public Health Implications 
 

43. The distribution of the ARG and WBF will help support businesses through 
pandemic restrictions until such as lockdown restrictions end.  This in turn 
will help to protect people’s livelihoods, employment, economic and social 
wellbeing. 

 
Equalities Impact of the Proposal  
 

Page 8



PL 21/038 P 
 

44. The ARG and WBF will support and be open to a range of businesses 
across all sectors across the borough. A number of the business Support 
Schemes will be tailored to underrepresented groups in business offering 
mentoring and training. Business Support Schemes will evidence how 
they add social value to the borough 
 

Environmental and Climate Change Considerations  
 

45. The criteria for the Business Support Scheme and Town Centre Business 
Support schemes could include climate action and reducing carbon 
emissions, for example by supporting businesses in the green economy 
and retrofit sectors.  This will be considered as these programmes are 
developed. 

 
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken 
 

46. Not to approve the policy and implement the ARG and WBF. This is not 
recommended as the opportunity would be missed to support businesses 
impacted by national restrictions in place and any subsequent local or 
national restrictions 

 
47. Not participating and using this dedicated funding will mean Further risks 

to the business community that will lead to the loss of businesses in 
various sectors, consequently the loss of jobs and more people 
unemployed and unable to support and contribute to the local economy 

 
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that will 
be taken to manage these risk 
 

48. Enfield Council do not accept this funding: this would not comply with the 
request from Government and would not give critical support to 
businesses operating within Enfield, and therefore this is not a 
recommended option. 

 
49. Enfield Council administer grants beyond the scheme set out by 

Government this is not affordable for the Council, and therefore is not the  
recommended option. 

 
Financial Implications  
 

50. An initial allocation of £9.3 million pounds was granted to Enfield to 
support businesses through ARG phase 1, this was successfully 
delivered, which has allowed Enfield to qualify for a further £2.3 million 
grant.  
 

51. Local authorities are responsible for delivering the grant to businesses and 
have discretion over the design and implementation of their local scheme, 
which will be met from the £2.3m ARG Phase 2 grant - March 2022 is the 
spend deadline. 
 

52. Through the Reopening High Streets Fund now known as the Welcome 
Back Fund (WBF) Enfield Council has also been awarded an additional 

Page 9



PL 21/038 P 
 

£262,673 to support the return to high streets safely - March 2022 is the 
spend deadline. 
 

53. Therefore, there will be no financial impact on the Council but would have 
a significant benefit to a considerable number of businesses within the 
borough. 

 
Legal Implications  
 

54. Local Authorities are business rate billing authorities in England. They 
receive funding from Government and are responsible for making 
payments to businesses.  The general principle applies that Local 
Authorities are responsible and accountable for the lawful use of funds 
under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972. The Section 151 
Officer within the Local Authority is required to exercise their duties in line 
with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
guidance, ensuring their oversight of the proper administration of financial 
affairs within the Local Authority, including these grants. 

 
55. Officers must familiarise themselves with the relevant government 

guidance for administration of each of the two schemes - including any 
updates as and when they are issued - and must ensure compliance with 
such guidance when implementing the proposals within this Report.  As the 
WBF is derived from the European Regional Development Fund, 
investments will need to follow the ERDF Operational Programme’s rules, 
as detailed in the WBF government guidance.  

 
56.  Officers must also be mindful not to breach subsidy control/ state aid rules 

when implementing the schemes.  The WBF government guidance states 
that investments made through that fund are limited to activity that is not 
classified as State Aid (being derived from the ERDF).  With regard to the 
ARG, local authorities must be satisfied that all subsidy allowance 
conditions have been fully complied with when making the grant payments. 
There are three subsidy allowances for the ARG scheme:  
 

 Small Amounts of Financial Assistance Allowance (325,000 Special 
Drawing Rights, to a single economic actor over any period of three 
fiscal years, which is the equivalent of £335,000 as at 2 March 2021); 

 The COVID-19 Business Grant Allowance (subsidies granted on a 
temporary basis to respond to a national or global economic 
emergency- £1,600,000 per single economic actor); 

 The COVID-19 Business Grant Special Allowance (where an applicant 
has reached its limit under the Small Amounts of Financial Assistance 
Allowance and COVID-19 Business Grant Allowance, it may be able to 
access a further allowance of funding of up to £9,000,000 per single 
economic actor, provided certain conditions are met). 

 
57. Local Authorities must also ensure wider compliance with the Subsidy 

Control regime, in particular the Transparency obligations: All schemes and 
individual awards over £500,000 must be uploaded to the BEIS 
Transparency Database within six months of being granted. Any ad hoc 
awards of at least 325,000 Special Drawing Rights over three years to an 

Page 10



PL 21/038 P 
 

individual beneficiary must also be uploaded within six months of being 
granted. 

 
58. Any procurement of goods or services by the Council in implementing the 

proposals within this Report should be carried out in compliance with the 
Council’s Contract Procurement Rules and, where applicable, the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015. In particular, under the WBF government 
guidance, local authorities will need to ensure that all procurements are 
awarded in line with the ESIF (European Structural and Investment Funds) 
National Procurement Requirements. 
 

59. As flagged elsewhere in this Report, the Welcome Back Fund builds on the 
Reopening High Streets Safely Fund and is an extension to the earlier 
phase of the project. The delivery mechanism is a variation to the grant 
funding agreements (GFA) DLUHC currently has with local authorities.  
Legal Services should review the variation to the Council’s current GFA.  

 
Workforce Implications 

 

60. None as the existing ARG team will deliver this work 
 

Property Implications 
 

61. The proposals in this report carry a number of property implications as 
they foresee a letting at 123 Fore Street and also the creation/provision of 
serviced accommodation to enable the delivery of the “Shared 
Workspace/Community Hub”. 
 

62. At the time of writing the intent on what nature of occupational 
arrangement at 123 Fore Street needs to be put in place for the 
repurposed retail space designed to support Afro-Caribbean. However, if a 
lease is required, the lease terms will need to be mindful of letting policy 
within the Strategic Asset Management Plan and the letting process follow 
the Property Procedure Rules. If any arrangement amounts to one that is 
materially concessionary to market terms, such indirect grant funding will 
need to be agreed and cross-funded to the HRA by the appropriate 
service that is sponsoring the occupier’s placement there. 
 
 

63. The provision of a Shared Workspace facility is unlikely to be able to be 
found from within existing Council assets given the scarcity of vacant 
council commercial assets (vacancy rates are currently less than 4%). For 
this to be delivered it should be anticipated that it will need to come from 
new leased-in premises, where an exception to the general presumption 
against leasing-in premises will need to be agreed at the appropriate level 
(e.g. Property Board). Thereafter ARG team will need to engage closely 
with SPS to determine what might be possible by way of taking new 
premise and to ensure that best practice and Council procedure rules are 
complied with. Note that the level of funding for this initiative will have a 
direct relationship with how long the Council can offer a Shared 
Workspace facility.  
 

Page 11



PL 21/038 P 
 

Other Implications 
 

64. None 
 
Options Considered 
 

65. A number of differing options have been examined as part of devising the 
proposal to spend this grant. 
 

66. We have undertaken thorough engagement with council departments and 
teams through brainstorming sessions to ensure these ideas are evidence 
led.  We have explored and researched best practice with other local 
authorities. The approach has also been informed by consultation with 
local businesses through surveys and focus group. A robust methodology 
was then applied to all the ideas to score their suitability against a range of 
criteria. This criterion looked at the tangibility of the scheme, the outcomes 
and outputs, how it fits with the ARG and WBF guidance and how the 
ideas support the aims of the Council Plan and Economic Development 
Strategy. 

 
Conclusions 
 

67. The ARG and WBF grant scheme gives the Council the opportunity to use 
its discretion to assist a range of local businesses that contribute to the 
Borough’s local economy. 

68. The council will be provided with funds from Government to cover the 
scheme(s). There is no net cost to the Council to introduce the scheme. 

69. These proposals will directly benefit a substantial number of businesses in 
the borough in challenging times. 

 

 
Report Author: Sam Buckley 
 Head of ARG and Grants  
 Sam Buckley@enfield.gov.uk 
 02081321357 
 
Date of report 06/10/2021 
 
Appendices:  
 
Appendix 1: EQIA 
 
Background Papers: None 
 

Page 12



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

Enfield Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 

Introduction 
 

The purpose of an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) is to help Enfield Council 
make sure it does not discriminate against service users, residents and staff, and 
that we promote equality where possible. Completing the assessment is a way to 
make sure everyone involved in a decision or activity thinks carefully about the likely 
impact of their work and that we take appropriate action in response to this analysis. 
 
The EqIA provides a way to systematically assess and record the likely equality 
impact of an activity, policy, strategy, budget change or any other decision.  
 
The assessment helps us to focus on the impact on people who share one of the 
different nine protected characteristics as defined by the Equality Act 2010 as well as 
on people who are disadvantaged due to socio-economic factors. The assessment 
involves anticipating the consequences of the activity or decision on different groups 
of people and making sure that: 

 unlawful discrimination is eliminated 

 opportunities for advancing equal opportunities are maximised 

 opportunities for fostering good relations are maximised. 
 
The EqIA is carried out by completing this form. To complete it you will need to: 
 

 use local or national research which relates to how the activity/ policy/ 
strategy/ budget change or decision being made may impact on different 
people in different ways based on their protected characteristic or socio-
economic status; 

 where possible, analyse any equality data we have on the people in Enfield 
who will be affected e.g. equality data on service users and/or equality data 
on the Enfield population; 

 refer to the engagement and/ or consultation you have carried out with 
stakeholders, including the community and/or voluntary and community sector 
groups and consider what this engagement showed us about the likely impact 
of the activity/ policy/ strategy/ budget change or decision on different groups. 

 
The results of the EqIA should be used to inform the proposal/recommended 
decision and changes should be made to the proposal/recommended decision 
because of the assessment where required. Any ongoing/future mitigating actions 
required should be set out in the action plan at the end of the assessment. 
 

The completed EqIA should be included as an appendix to relevant EMT/ 
Delegated Authority/ Cabinet/ Council reports regarding the service activity/ 
policy/ strategy/ budget change/ decision. Decision-makers should be 
confident that a robust EqIA has taken place, that any necessary mitigating 
action has been taken and that there are robust arrangements in place to 
ensure any necessary ongoing actions are delivered. 

Page 13



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

SECTION 1 – Equality Analysis Details 
 

Title of service activity / policy/ 
strategy/ budget change/ decision that 
you are assessing 
 

Distribution of Welcome Back 
Funding (WBF) and Additional 
Restrictions Grant (ARG) funding to 
local businesses 

Lead officer(s) name(s) and contact 
details  
 

Sam Buckley 
Sam.Buckley@enfield.gov.uk 

Team/ Department 
 

Economic Development – Place 

Executive Director  
 

Sarah Cary 

Cabinet Member Cllr Mary Maguire 

Date of EqIA completion  
 

27th October 2021 

 

SECTION 2 – Summary of Proposal 
 

Please give a brief summary of the proposed service change/policy/strategy/ 
budget change/project plan/ key decision  
 
Please summarise briefly:  
 
What is the proposed decision or change? 
What are the reasons for the decision or change? 
What outcomes are you hoping to achieve from this change? 
Who will be impacted by the project or change - staff, service users, or the wider 
community?  
 

This is to distribute 2.5 million pounds of government funding to local businesses 
to support our high street and encourage the return of customers to our local 
shops. This is from 2 government backed schemes and funds that have specific 
guidance on what can be done with the money. These are the Additional 
Restrictions Grant (ARG) and Welcome Back Funding (WBF). The aim of this 
funding is to support the local economy and business that have been hard hit 
through the Covid pandemic. There are restrictions on what we can do with the 
money through dedicated government guidance and we must have an application 
scheme and open procurement for anything that we do. The aim is to boost our 
town centres and support local businesses. The Business community and local 
economy are the intended recipients of this funding. 
 
This will be achieved through a series of direct grants to business sectors that 
have been hard hit by the pandemic, Business support and mentorship and 

Page 14

mailto:Sam.Buckley@enfield.gov.uk


 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

training programmes, and festival and town centre activity. 
The Business Support Activity is a key deliverable for us. This will be contracted 
out to be run by partner organisations. Through the contract and associated 
contract management we will ensure that there is a clear equality focus and that all 
training and mentorship programmes are inclusive and accessible with a clear 
focus on underrepresented groups. The Business support activity will include  
 
Business start-up project to provide dedicated training, mentoring, and advice for 
new entrepreneurs across the Borough. The programme will involve a mentoring 
element, upskilling residents to develop their new business in Enfield. The 
programme will be borough-wide and will concentrate on residents that have 
started their own business but need to develop the skills to grow 
 
Business support for scale-up programme. The aim of the project will be to support 
businesses to identify and exploit opportunities to grow, to ensure they are up to 
date with the latest leadership and management thinking, to help to find new 
markets and to learn how to utilize the mediums and identify and access growth 
finance.  
 
Creative entrepreneurship will be vital as part of the new economic landscape in 
Enfield. This is a bespoke support for young people aged 18 plus looking to enter 
the creative sector. 
 
We will also look at how residents can access the business support schemes on 
offer and benefit from the training and support by ensuring that that the training is 
accessible in a variety of formats. This will include making reasonable adjustments 
for residents to ensure any application form and the full benefits of the training and 
support schemes are accessible and inclusive 

  

Page 15



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

SECTION 3 – Equality Analysis 
 

This section asks you to consider the potential differential impact of the proposed 

decision or change on different protected characteristics, and what mitigating actions 

should be taken to avoid or counteract any negative impact. 

According to the Equality Act 2010, protected characteristics are aspects of a 

person’s identity that make them who they are. The law defines 9 protected 

characteristics: 

1. Age 
2. Disability 
3. Gender reassignment. 
4. Marriage and civil partnership. 
5. Pregnancy and maternity. 
6. Race 
7. Religion or belief. 
8. Sex 
9. Sexual orientation. 

At Enfield Council, we also consider socio-economic status as an additional 
characteristic. 

“Differential impact” means that people of a particular protected characteristic (e.g. 

people of a particular age, people with a disability, people of a particular gender, or 

people from a particular race and religion) will be significantly more affected by the 

change than other groups. Please consider both potential positive and negative 

impacts, and, where possible, provide evidence to explain why this group might be 

particularly affected. If there is no differential impact for that group, briefly explain 

why this is not applicable. 

Please consider how the proposed change will affect staff, service users or members 

of the wider community who share one of the following protected characteristics. 

  

Page 16



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

Age 

 
This can refer to people of a specific age e.g. 18-year olds, or age range e.g. 0-18 year 

olds.  

 

Will the proposed change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact 
[positive or negative] on people of a specific age or age group (e.g. older or 
younger people)?  
 
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected. 

Our Business Support scheme and training programmes will be open to all 
businesses and prospective business owners in the borough. There is no age limit 
for business owners to access to these schemes.  
 
When considering the impact on different age groups, we are aware of national 
statistics that show the average age of a business owner is 51. However, we are 
keen to engage and offer support to young people 18+  that are wishing to set up a 
business and provide support to young people that may not be in Education, 
Employment or Training (NEET). Youth unemployment in Enfield is a major 
issue. Young people in Enfield are disproportionately impacted by unemployment, 
with 12.3% of 18-21-year olds and 14.1% of 22-24-year olds unemployed and 
claiming Jobseekers’ Allowance or Universal Credit. As shown by the chart below, 
the percentage of population claiming Job Seeker Allowance or Universal Credit is 
highest amongst young people aged 18.24. Therefore, we want to support young 
people to access high quality employment and innovation through supporting 
business start-ups.  
 

 
 
 
As of Q4 2020/21, 4.6% of 16-17-year olds were not in education, employment or 
training or their activity was not known. This is slightly higher than the London 
average (6%) but lower than the national average (9.3%). Qualitative data shows 
that young people are acutely aware of the impact of Covid-19 on their 
employment opportunities. More than a quarter of 16-to-25-year olds in 
London feel that their future career prospects have already been damaged by the 

Page 17



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

coronavirus pandemic, while 46% say that finding a job now feels impossible.3 Our 
business support schemes would have a focus on engaging and assisting young 
people back into the work 
 

Mitigating actions to be taken 

 We will be using equalities monitoring data to evaluate and track the impact 
of the grant on different protected characteristics and to help better tailor 
support in the future  

 

Disability 
 
A person has a disability if they have a physical or mental impairment which has a 
substantial and long-term adverse effect on the person’s ability to carry out normal day-
day activities.  
 
This could include:  
Physical impairment, hearing impairment, visual impairment, learning difficulties, long-
standing illness or health condition, mental illness, substance abuse or other impairments.  
 

Will the proposed change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact 
[positive or negative] on people with disabilities? 
 
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected. 

Our Business Support scheme and training programmes will be open to all 
businesses and prospective business owners in the borough including business 
owners that have a disability.  There is limited data held on the disability profile of 
business owners and entrepreneurs, however we do know that disabled residents 
are disproportionately impacted by unemployment. The latest local data from 2019 
showed that only 42.6% of disabled persons in Enfield were in employment. This is 
lower than the national average, which estimates 53.2% of disabled persons are in 
employment.1. This will include making reasonable adjustments for disabled 
residents to ensure any application form and the full benefits of the training and 
support schemes are accessible and inclusive. 

Mitigating actions to be taken 

 We will be using equalities monitoring data to evaluate and track the impact 
of the grant on different protected characteristics and to help better tailor 
support in the future.  

 

Gender Reassignment 
 
This refers to people who are proposing to undergo, are undergoing, or have undergone a 
process (or part of a process) to reassign their sex by changing physiological or other 
attributes of sex. 

                                                           
1
 National Population Survey, 2019 

Page 18



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

  

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or 
negative] on transgender people? 
 
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected. 

Our Business Support scheme and training programmes will be open to all 
businesses in the borough including prospective business owners this will include 
residents who are proposing to undergo, are undergoing, or have undergone gender 
reassignment. We will use equalities monitoring to ensure that our support schemes 
are accessible to Trans people.  

Mitigating actions to be taken 

 We will be using equalities monitoring data to evaluate and track the impact of 
the grant on different protected characteristics and to help better tailor support 
in the future. 

 We will ensure that providers of the training have up to date equalities training 
and are aware of the underrepresented groups in Enfield 

 

 

Marriage and Civil Partnership  

 
Marriage and civil partnerships are different ways of legally recognising relationships. The 

formation of a civil partnership must remain secular, where-as a marriage can be 

conducted through either religious or civil ceremonies. In the U.K both marriages and civil 

partnerships can be same sex or mixed sex. Civil partners must be treated the same as 

married couples on a wide range of legal matters. 

 

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or 
negative] on people in a marriage or civil partnership?  
 
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected 

There is no impact anticipated. Our Business Support scheme and training 
programmes will be open to all business owners and prospective business owners 
in the borough, regardless of their marital/ civil partnership status.  
 

Mitigating actions to be taken 

  We will be using equalities monitoring data to evaluate and track the impact 
of the grant on different protected characteristics, and to help better tailor 
support in the future 

 

Pregnancy and maternity  
 
Pregnancy refers to the condition of being pregnant or expecting a baby. Maternity refers 
to the period after the birth and is linked to maternity leave in the employment context. In 
the non-work context, protection against maternity discrimination is for 26 weeks after 
giving birth, and this includes treating a woman unfavourably because she is 
breastfeeding. 

 

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or 

Page 19



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

negative] on pregnancy and maternity? 
 
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected 

Our Business Support scheme and training programmes will be open to all 
business and prospective business owners in the borough, regardless of whether 
they are pregnant or expecting a baby. 
 
We are aware of challenges that new mothers would face returning to the 
workplace. The national data shows that fewer than one-in-five of all new mothers, 
and 29% of first-time mothers, have a full-time job after maternity leave. We 
believe these schemes, one of which will focus on business start-ups can support 
parents and new mothers back into the workplace, to create and develop their own 
business. We would ensure that the training and mentorship is flexible in delivery 
such as being online to enable new mothers to balance childcare requirements  
. 

Mitigating actions to be taken 

  We will be using equalities monitoring data to evaluate and track the impact 
of the grant on different protected characteristics, and to help better tailor 
support in the future 

 

 

Race 

 

This refers to a group of people defined by their race, colour, and nationality (including 

citizenship), ethnic or national origins. 

 

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or 
negative] on people of a certain race? 
 
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected 

Our Business Support scheme and training programmes will be open to all business 
owners and prospective business owners in the borough, regardless of their race. 
This will have a positive impact. Looking at available national datasets, 5.1% of UK 
small and medium enterprise (SME) employers were majority-led by ethnic minorities 
(excluding White minorities) we would like to encourage growth and innovation and 
entrepreneurs further from ethnic minorities. We would like local business owners to 
fully reflect the ethnic profile of the borough. The table below provides the lasted 
population estimates by ethnicity in Enfield. 

Page 20



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

 
 
We will achieve this by engaging with targeted communications with relevant 
organisation through marketing and national and local organisation to encourage all 
businesses from all races to participate in these schemes 
 
We recognise that we don’t have a complete local data set so will be collecting 
information on the ethnicity of business owners as we roll out the support and 
mentorship through our business support programme to build upon the data that we 
have on Business Owners in our Economic Development FAME database (this 
database contains details of business in the Borough), following the necessary 
GDPR requirements and procedures. This indicates the majority of business owners 
and business start-ups are owned by individuals from a White British nationality  

Page 21



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

 
 

Mitigating actions to be taken 

 

 We will be using equalities monitoring data to evaluate and track the impact of 

the grant on different protected characteristics and to help better tailor support 

in the future. 
 

 

Religion and belief  

 
Religion refers to a person’s faith (e.g. Buddhism, Islam, Christianity, Judaism, Sikhism, 

Hinduism). Belief includes religious and philosophical beliefs including lack of belief (e.g. 

Atheism). Generally, a belief should affect your life choices or the way you live. 

 

 

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or 
negative] on people who follow a religion or belief, including lack of belief? 
 
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected. 
 

All our Business Support scheme and training programmes will be open to all 

business owners and prospective business owners in the borough, regardless of 

their religion and beliefs.  

Page 22



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

Mitigating actions to be taken  

 

 We will be using equalities monitoring data to evaluate and track the 

impact of the grant on different protected characteristics, and to help 

better tailor support in the future.  
 

 

 

Sexual Orientation  

 
This refers to whether a person is sexually attracted to people of the same sex or a 

different sex to themselves. Please consider the impact on people who identify as 

heterosexual, bisexual, gay, lesbian, non-binary or asexual.  

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or 

negative] on people with a particular sexual orientation? 

Sex  

 
Sex refers to whether you are a man or woman. 

 

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or 

negative] on men or women?  

 
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected. 

Our Business Support scheme and training programmes will be open to all 
business owners and prospective business owners in the borough regardless of 
their sex.  
  
When considering the impact on business owners that are male and female, we 
are aware that locally 15% of business owners are female. There is an 
increasing trend of female entrepreneurs that we wish to encourage, and 32% of 
all new small businesses were formed by women in 2020. We wish to encourage 
more women into businesses through our dedicated start up and creative 
business support programmes. This will be achieved through clear marketing 
and communication programmes targeting females into the support programmes 
that we have on offer. 
  

Mitigating actions to be taken  

 We will be using equalities monitoring data to evaluate and track the 
impact of the grant on different protected characteristics and to help better 
tailor support in the future.  

 

 

Page 23



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

 
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected. 

 

There is no impact anticipated.  All our Business Support scheme and training 
programmes will be open to all business owners and prospective business 
owners in the borough, regardless of their sexual orientation.  We will use 
equalities monitoring to ensure that our support schemes are accessible to 
business owners regardless of their sexual orientation.  
 

Mitigating actions to be taken  

 We will be using equalities monitoring data to evaluate and track the 

impact of the grant on different protected characteristics, and to help 

better tailor support in the future.  
 

 

 

 

Socio-economic deprivation 
 
This refers to people who are disadvantaged due to socio-economic factors e.g. 
unemployment, low income, low academic qualifications or living in a deprived area, social 
housing or unstable housing.  
 

Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or 

negative] on people who are socio-economically disadvantaged? 

 

Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected. 

Positive impact anticipated.  All our Business Support scheme and training 
programmes will be open to all business owners and prospective business owners 
in the borough but we would like to support areas of high deprivation.  
  
The Indices of Multiple Deprivation 2019 placed Enfield as the 74th most deprived 
borough in England, and the 9th most deprived in London. Pockets of High 
deprivation can be found in the east of the borough where small neighbourhoods 
feature amongst the 10%most deprived in England. 
We would look to target communities that have high levels of deprivation and 
encourage businesses to engage with our support schemes to generate further 
innovation and growth in these communities. 
 
Recent data in September 2021 show that Upper Edmonton had the highest 
number of start-ups, Ponders End had the least and we wish to encourage a more 
equitable split, to ensure that the whole borough benefits from economic growth.  
 

Mitigating actions to be taken. 

Page 24



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

 We are developing a series of business support schemes, we will be 
targeting business owners from areas of high deprivation and using GIS 
software to map our engagement and success in achieving this. This is part 
of our contract management with the contractors that have won the tenders 
to deliver business support in that they must target specific parts of the 
borough and we have data sharing agreements in place to be able to 
identify the postcodes that businesses come from 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SECTION 4 – Monitoring and Review 
  

How do you intend to monitor and review the effects of this proposal? 
 
Who will be responsible for assessing the effects of this proposal? 
 

Page 25



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

The Head of Service will be monitoring the impact. All the activities have 
measurable outcomes that we can track and monitor to ensure that we are 
reaching vulnerable groups of individuals and providing support where it is 
needed.  Where we have gone out to procurement or delivered partnerships with 
other organisations they are all subject to rigorous contract management which 
includes a monthly review on data to ensure that they are targeting the parts of the 
borough (from a location and equalities angle) that we wish and that they can 
evidence the impact that they are having. All data is monitored monthly. Some of 
this data will then feature in corporate reporting at a Department Management 
Team (DMT) and then an Executive Management Team (EMT) level. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 26



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

SECTION 5 – Action Plan for Mitigating Actions. 

  

Identified  
Issue  

Action Required Lead 
officer  

Timescale/By  
When  

Costs  Review 
Date/Comments  

Not enough 
information 
known on some 
protected 
characteristics 

Further Data and 
Research 
needed and 
collecting this 
information from 
business as we 
engage with 
them through this 
funding 

Sam 
Buckley 

March 2022 None – met 
through 
intelligence 
gathering 

Review at 
monthly 
intervals 

Evidencing 
impact of the 
successful 
delivery of the 
ARG and 
business support 
schemes 

Setting up robust 
kPIS that allow 
us to monitor the 
effectiveness of 
these schemes 

Sam 
Buckley 

December 
2021 

None – 
developing a 
Performance 
management 
framework. 

Review at 
monthly 
intervals 

A retrospective 
EqIA will be 
completed after 1 
year in March 
2023.   

A retrospective 
EqIA will be 
completed after 1 
year in March 
2023.   

Sam 
Buckley 

March 2023 None  

      

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 ARG and WBF
	PL 21.038 P Appendix One- EQIA November 2021 - 19 NOV 21


